REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA

SEPTEMBER 24, 2018
10:00 A.M.

CouNcIL CHAMBERS
FORT VERMILION, AB

P.O. Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue, Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO
P: (780) 927-3718 |Toll Free: 1-877-927-0677 | F: (780) 927-4266
www.mackenziecounty.com | office@mackenziecounty.com






MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Monday, September 24, 2018
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA
Page
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order
AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 3
ADOPTION OF 3. a) Minutes of the September 11, 2018 Regular 7
PREVIOUS MINUTES: Council Meeting
b) Minutes of the September 19, 2018 Special 29
Council Meeting
C) Business Arising out of the Minutes
DELEGATIONS: 4, a) Helix Engineering — La Crete Future Utility 35
Servicing Plan (1:00 p.m.)
b)
COUNCIL 5. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal)
COMMITTEE
REPORTS: b) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 37
c) Subdivision & Development Appeal Board 49
GENERAL 6. a) None
REPORTS:
TENDERS: 7. a) None

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 8. a) None



ADMINISTRATION:

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

FINANCE:

OPERATIONS:

10.

11.

12.

13.

Diseased Bison Awareness (Signage)
Applications for Property Tax Exemptions
Participation in Community Events
Mackenzie County Advertising Space

Meetings with Ministers — Rural Municipalities of
Alberta (RMA) Fall Convention

Caribou (Standing Item)

Blumenort Waste Transfer Station — Build Up
Berm Project

Uncommitted Reserve Balances

Financial Reports — January 1, 2018 to August
31,2018

Bylaw 1114-18 Fee Schedule

Snow Removal Options - River Road Fort
Vermilion

Review of Dispositions

o7

59

83

87

93

97

99

103

109

153

161



PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

UTILITIES:

INFORMATION /
CORRESPONDENCE:

IN CAMERA
SESSION:

14. a)

b)

15. a)

16. a)

Policy PW018 Hiring of Private Equipment

Bylaw 1109-18 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
add regulation to Section 8 and to add regulation
to Section 9.34, Section 9.16.9 and to correct
typographical errors found in Section 9.17.3,
Section 9.19.3 and to add tarp shelters as a
permitted use in the Agricultural (A) and Forestry
(F) zoning districts

Bylaw 1115-18 Municipal Reserve Closure Plan
052 2360, Block 2, Lot 3MR (NW 3-106-15-W5M)

Bylaw 1116-18 Lane Closure Between Lots 1 &
3MR, Block 2, Plan 052 2360 (La Crete)

Buttertown Recovery
Investing Canada — Community Initiatives Grant

Thought Leaders Summit — Protein Industries
Canada

Policy UT006 Municipal Rural Water Servicing —
Endeavor to Assist

Information/Correspondence

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Division
2, Part 1 Exceptions to Disclosure

165

167

175

183

191

193

195

197

211



17. a) Diversion Licence Review Update (s. 21)

NOTICE OF MOTION: 18. a)

NEXT MEETING 19. a) Regular Council Meeting
DATES: October 9, 2018
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

b) Organizational Council Meeting
October 23, 2018
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

c) Regular Council Meeting
October 24, 2018
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment



Agenda ltem # 3. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: September 24, 2018
Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Director of Legislative & Support Services
Title: Minutes of the September 11, 2018 Regular Council Meeting

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Minutes of the September 11, 2018, Regular Council Meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

Approved Council Meeting minutes are posted on the County website.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

4| Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the minutes of the September 11, 2018 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as
presented.

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by: CG CAO:







MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

September 11, 2018
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, AB

PRESENT: Peter F. Braun Reeve
Lisa Wardley Deputy Reeve
Jacquie Bateman Councillor
Cameron Cardinal Councillor
David Driedger Councillor
Eric Jorgensen Councillor (arrived,at 10:14 a.m.)
Josh Knelsen Councillor
Anthony Peters Councillor
Ernest Peters Councillor
Walter Sarapuk Councillor
REGRETS:
ADMINISTRATION: Len Racher Chief-Administrative Officer
Byron Peters Deputy CAO
David Fehr Director of Operations
Doug Munn Director of Community Services
Fred Wiebe Director of Utilities
Bill McKennan Director of Finance
Grant,Smith Agricultural Fieldman
Don,Roberts Zama Site Manager
Chelsea Doi Municipal Intern/Recording Secretary

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the public.
Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on September 11, 2018
in the Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office.
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order

Reeve Braun called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.
AGENDA: 2.a) Adoption of Agenda

MOTION 18-09-634 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 2 of 13
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

That the agenda be approved with the following deletion:
13. b) Road Rebuild Projects in Rocky Lane Area

CARRIED

A moment of silence was held in remembrance of the victims
of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks.

MINUTES FROM 3.a) Minutes of the August 29, 2018 Regular Council
PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting
MOTION 18-09-635 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the minutes of the August 29, 2018'Regular Council
Meeting be adopted as presented,

CARRIED
3. b) Business Arising out of the Minutes
None.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE 5.a) Council Committee Reports (verbal)
REPORTS:

Coungillor/Jorgensen arrived at 10:14 a.m.

MOTION 18-09-636 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley
That.administration compile current and historical data
regarding the operating days of the La Crete Ferry and Ice
Bridge.
CARRIED

MOTION 18-09-637 MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

That the Council Committee reports be received for
information.

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the meeting at 10:59 a.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 11:14 a.m.

TENDERS: 7.a) Hamlet of Zama Lift Station Upgrade

10



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-638

MOTION 18-09-639

MOTION 18-09-640

TENDERS:

MOTION 18-09-641

Page 3 of 13

MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the Hamlet of Zama Lift Station Upgrade Tenders —
Envelope #1 be opened and that administration review the
tenders for qualification prior to opening Envelope #2.

Tenders Received:

Chandos All required documents enclosed.
Pomerleau Inc. All required documents enclosed.
CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor A. Peters

That the Hamlet of Zama LiftStation Upgrade Tenders -
Envelope #2 be opened for the qualified bidders.

Tenders Received:

Chandos $2,923,000.00
Pomerleau Inc: $2,536,700.00
Corrected value $2,521,700.00
Two prejectdeduction  $75,000.00
(Pomerleau Inc.)

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That administration review the Hamlet of Zama Lift Station
Upgrade Tenders and bring back their recommendations to
Council later in the meeting.

CARRIED

7. b) Hamlet of Zama Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the Hamlet of Zama Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
Tenders — Envelope #1 be opened and that administration

review the tenders for qualification prior to opening Envelope
#2.

11



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 4 of 13
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

Tenders Received:

Chandos All required documents enclosed.
Pomerleau Inc. All required documents enclosed.
CARRIED
MOTION 18-09-642 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the Hamlet of Zama Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
Tenders - Envelope #2 be opened for the qualified bidders.

Tenders Received:

Chandos $1,959,000:00
Pomerleau Inc. $1,965,000.00
CARRIED
MOTION 18-09-643 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That administration review'the Hamlet of Zama Water
Treatment PlantiUpgrade Tenders and bring back their
recommendations to Council later in the meeting.
CARRIED

COUNCIL COMMITTEE 5. b)» Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
REPORTS:

MOTION 18-09-644 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of
August 23, 2018 be received for information.

CARRIED

COUNCIL COMMITTEE 5.c) Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
REPORTS:

MOTION 18-09-645 MOVED by Councillor A. Peters

That the unapproved Finance Committee meeting minutes of
August 27, 2018 be received for information.

CARRIED

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

COUNCIL COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

MOTION 18-09-646

MOTION 18-09-647

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Page 5 of 13

5.d) Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the Agricultural Service Board review all options for large
animal veterinary services in the region.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the Agricultural Service Board meeting minutes of August
30, 2018 be received for information:

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the'meeting at 12:02 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting aty12:52 p.m.

8.a) Bylaw 1111-18 Lkand Use Bylaw Amendment for a
Zoning Overlay:to add Shop — Farm as a Use and to
increase the amount of Animal Units on NW 29-106-
15-W5M

Reeve Braun called the public hearing for Bylaw 1111-18 to
orderat 1:06 p.m.

Reeve Braun asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw
1111-18 was properly advertised. Byron Peters, Deputy CAO,
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the
Municipal Government Act.

Reeve Braun asked the Development Authority to outline the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment. Byron Peters, Deputy
CAQO, presented the Bylaw and indicated that first reading was
given on August 14, 2018.

Reeve Braun asked if Council has any questions of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment. There were no
questions.

Reeve Braun asked if any submissions were received in

regards to proposed Bylaw 1111-18. No submissions were
received.

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-648

MOTION 18-09-649

GENERAL REPORTS:

MOTION 18-09-650

MOTION 18-09-651

Page 6 of 13

Reeve Braun asked if there was anyone present who would
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1111-18. There
was no one was present to speak to the proposed bylaw.

Reeve Braun closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1111-18 at
1:08 p.m.

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That second reading be given to Bylaw 1111-18 being a Land
Use Bylaw Amendment for a Zoning Overlay to add Shop-
Farm as a permitted use and to increase the amount of animal
units on NW 29-106-15-W5M.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That third reading be/givenito Bylaw 1111-18 being a Land
Use Bylaw Amendment for @ Zoning Overlay to add Shop-
Farm as a permitted use=and to increase the amount of animal
units on NW _29-106-16=\W5M.

CARRIED

6. a) CAO & Directors Report for August 2018

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That administration draft a letter regarding the Disaster
Recovery Program response and forward it to the Northern
Alberta Elected Leaders and Rural Municipalities of Alberta
(RMA) Northern Zone.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That administration prepare a video to be sent to Premier
Rachel Notley, Minister Shaye Anderson, Minister Richard
Feehan, Minister Danielle Larivee, Minister Margaret McCuaig-
Boyd, and MLA Debbie Jabbour and that a meeting date with
Municipal Affairs be set before September 24, 2018.

CARRIED

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-652

MOTION 18-09-653

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 18-09-654

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 18-09-655

FINANCE:

MOTION 18-09-656
Requires 2/3

Page 7 of 13

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That a Special Council Meeting be scheduled for September
19, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. to discuss Inter-municipal Agreements.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

That the CAO and Directors reports for August 2018 be
received for information.

CARRIED

9.a) Diseased Bison Awareness (Signage)
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the County requésts $33,150.00 for the signage on
Mackenzie highways'as part of the bison watch initiative from
the federal government'within their federal wood bison
recovery strategy.

CARRIED

9. b) Caribou

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the update on Caribou be received for information.

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the meeting at 1:57 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 2:09 p.m.

12. a) 2018 Budget Update
MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the 2018 Operating Budget in the amount of $36,428,667
as detailed in Appendix | be approved.

CARRIED

15



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 8 of 13
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-657 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen
Requires 2/3

That the 2018 Non-TCA Projects in the amount of $2,477,076
and funding sources as detailed in Appendix |l be approved.

CARRIED

MOTION 18-09-658 MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk
Requires 2/3

That the 2018 Capital Budget Expenditures in the amount of
$18,103,559 and funding sources as detailed for Projects
Numbers 1 to 107 in Appendix Il be approved.

CARRIED

MOTION 18-09-659 MOVED by Councillor Driedger.

Requires 2/3
That the 2018 Capital Budget Expenditures in the amount of
$8,085,000 and funding sotrces for projects Number 108 to
110 in Appendix Il be appreved conditional on grant funding
being confirmed.

CARRIED

MOTION 18-09-660 MOVED.by Deputy Reeve Wardley
Requires 2/3

That the2018 Operating Budget as detailed in Appendix | be
amendedto increase Administration Operating Expense by
$245,000 and decrease Contributions to Reserves by

$245,000.
CARRIED
DELEGATION: 4.a) S/Sgt. Bill Mooney, Fort Vermilion RCMP and S/Sgt.
Brad Giles, District Advisory NCO, Western Alberta
District
MOTION 18-09-661 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That council move in-camera at 2:33 p.m. to discuss the
following:
17. a) RCMP — Enhanced Policing Agreement and
Clerical Support Position (FOIP, Div. 2, Part 1, s.
17, 24)

CARRIED

16



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 9 of 13
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

All Councillors, administration, and the RCMP were present
during the in-camera discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6))

MOTION 18-09-662 MOVED by Councillor Knelsen
That council move out of camera at 3:45 p.m.
CARRIED

IN-CAMERA: 17. a) RCMP - Enhanced Policing Agreement and Clerical
Support Position

MOTION 18-09-663 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That administration bring back additional eptions for the La
Crete RCMP Clerical Support duties.

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the meeting at 3:46 p.m. and
reconvened thesmeetingwat'3:54 p.m.

TENDERS: 7.a) Hamlet of Zama Lift Station Upgrade

MOTION 18-09-664 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen
That'administration contact the grant organizations to provide
additional funding and research other cost-saving options for

the Hamlet of Zama Lift Station Upgrade project and bring
back recommendations.

CARRIED
TENDERS: 7. b) Hamlet of Zama Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
MOTION 18-09-665 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That administration contact the grant organizations to provide
additional funding and research other cost-saving options for
the Hamlet of Zama Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project
and bring back recommendations.

CARRIED

FINANCE: 12. b) Review Fire Service Fees

17



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-666

MOTION 18-09-667

MOTION 18-09-668
Requires Unanimaus

MOTION 18-09-669

Page 10 of 13

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1113-18 being the Fee
Schedule Bylaw for Mackenzie County with the following
amendment:

Fire Services Fees — Other Incidents
Note: b)

A residential invoice shall not exceed $5,000 per

incident. —ecconbalmanne s bot o not o perne
: land. hi | .

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That.second reading be given to Bylaw 1113-18 being the Fee
Schedule Bylaw for Mackenzie County.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That consideration be given to go to third reading of Bylaw
1113-18 being the Fee Schedule Bylaw for Mackenzie County.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1113-18 being the Fee
Schedule Bylaw for Mackenzie County.

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the meeting at 4:28 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 4:34 p.m.

18



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

MOTION 18-09-670

MOTION 18-09-671

OPERATIONS:

MOTION 18-09-672

OPERATIONS:

MOTION 18-09-673

INFORMATION /

CORRESPONDENCE:

MOTION 18-09-674

Page 11 of 13

11. a) Mackenzie County Wellness Centre

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the current application for the Mackenzie County
Wellness Centre be withdrawn and that administration review
other options.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That administration draft an emergent resolution to the Rural
Municipalities of Alberta (RMA)segardingsthe Investing in
Canada Infrastructure program.

CARRIED

13. a) Bylaw 1112-18 Fee Schedule Bylaw

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That Bylaw1412-18 Fee Schedule Bylaw be TABLED to the
next goungil meeting for additional information.

CARRIED

13. ¢) Hutch Lake FireSmart Forest Resource
Improvement Association of Alberta (FRIAA Grant)

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That administration submit an application for the Forest
Resource Improvement Association of Alberta (FRIAA)
FireSmart Grant for the purpose of addressing the
recommended actions (Option 1 — 3) outlined in the Mitigation
Study of the Hutch Lake and Area.

CARRIED

16. a) Information/Correspondence

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

19



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

IN-CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 18-09-675

MOTION 18-09-676

IN-CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 18-09-677

IN-CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 18-09-678

NOTICE OF MOTION:

Page 12 of 13

That the information/correspondence items be received for
information.

CARRIED
17. In-Camera Session
MOVED by Councillor Driedger
That Council move in-camera at 5:04 p.m. to discuss the
following:
17. b) Truckfill Project (FOIP, Div. 2, Part 1, s. 16, 24)
17. c) Personnel (FOIP, Div. 2, Part 1, s. 17, 19, 24)
CARRIED

All Councillors and administration‘were present during the in-
camera discussion. (MGASection 602.08(1)(6))

MOVED by Councillor. Driedger

That Council. move'ottief camera at 5:45 p.m.
CARRIED

17. b) Truckfill Project

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the discussion regarding the Truckfill Project be received
for information.

CARRIED
17. c) Personnel
MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the discussion regarding Personnel be received for
information.

CARRIED

18. a) Policy PW018 Hiring of Private Equipment

20



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 13 of 13
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, September 11, 2018

MOTION 18-09-679 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That notice be given that the following motion be presented at
the next council meeting:

That Policy PW018 Hiring of Private Equipment be
brought back to council for review and recommendation.

CARRIED
NEXT MEETING DATE: 19. a) Next Meeting Dates
Regular Council Meeting
September 24, 2018
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Regular Council Meeting
October 9, 2018
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion'Council Chambers
ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment
MOTION 18-09-680 MOVED.byCouncillor Jorgensen
That the/council meeting be adjourned at 5:48 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be'presented to Council for approval on September 24, 2018.

Peter F. Braun Len Racher
Reeve Chief Administrative Officer

21



2018 OPERATING BUDGET

OPERATIONAL REVENUES
Property taxes

User fees and sales of goods
Grants & Government transfers
Investment income (operating)
Penalties and costs on taxes
Licenses, permits and fines
Rentals

Muncipal reserve revenue
Other

Draws from Reserves

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE:

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Legislative

Administration

Protective services
Transportation

Water, sewer, solid waste dispo

APPENDIX |

sal

Public health and welfare (FCSS)

Planning, development
Agriculture and veterinary
Recreation and culture
Non-TCA projects
Principle - Long term debt
Bad Debt

Contributions to reserves

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE:

Excess (deficiency)

22

$24,555,587
$4,713,200
$1,551,966
$500,000
$1,300,000
$358,000
$125,500
$60,000
$294,000
$2,970,414

$36,428,667

$845,150
$5,479,900
$1,567,950
$13,053,400
$3,308,850
$814,850
$1,364,700
$1,417,810
$1,865,500
$2,477,076
$1,926,300
$646,000
$1,661,181

$36,428,667

($0)



MACKENZIE COUNTY

APPENDIX II

Non-TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

External Funding Internal Funding
Restricted
. - Count Other -
LOISSIEEsCI ey 2o BUzElar Costty FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant| Sources REREl Surp! us RS-type Debenture notes
e levy (previous
vears)
(12) - Adi -ation Department
Wolf bounty (CF 2016) 51,520 51,520 GOR
Caribou/industry Protection Strategy (CF 2016) 46,227 46,227 GOR
Cumulative Effects Assessment Study (CF 2017) 269,426 200,000 69,426 GOR
Information Technology Budget (2018) 48,000 - 48,000
Building Maintenance Lifecycle Plan (2018) 28,000 - 28,000
Building Appraisals (2018) 40,000 - 40,000
FV - Asset Management (2018) 45,000 - 36,000 9,000
ZA - FRIAA Firesmart Program (2018) 354,960 - 354,960
Total department 12 883,133 - - - 590,960 - 125,000 167,173 -
(23) - Fire Department
FV - Fire Dept Training Props (2018) 30,000 - 15,000 15,000 50/50 FVFD
LC - Fire Dept Training Props (2018) 35,000 - 17,500 17,500 50/50 LCFD
Supplies for 2006 Ford Ambulance (2018) - -
Total department 23 65,000 - - - - 32,500 32,500 - - -
(26) - Enforcement
\Radar Lazer - Portable (2018) 4,200 - 4,200
Total department 26 4,200 - - - - - 4,200 - - -
(32) - Public Works
ZA - Aspen Drive Ditch Repair (CF 2016) 60,000 60,000 GOR
LC & FV - Road Disposition - Survey Work (CF 2014) 41,359 41,359 GOR
Assumption Hill Improvement (ditching) (CF 2014) 17,290 17,290 GOR
Zama Road LOC (CF 2016) 100,000 100,000 GOR
Rocky Lane Oil Dust Control (CF 2017) 125,000 125,000 GOR
Oil Dust Control Willson Prairie Road (2018) - -
Oil Dust Control Isaac Dycks Subdivision (2018) - -
Total department 32 343,649 - - - - - - 343,649 -
(33) - Airport
|Airport Master Plan (CF 2016) 66,496 66,496 GOR
\FV Airport Development (CF 2016) 9,169 9,169 GOR
Total department 33 75,666 - - - - - - 75,665 -
(41) - Water
FV/HL Rural Comprehensive Water Study (CF 2017) -
LC -La Crete Future Water Supply Concept (2018) 200,000 - 200,000
Water Diversion License Review 35,000 35,000 GOR
Total department 41 235,000 - - - - - 200,000 35,000 -
(42) - Sewer
\ LC - Future Utility Servicing Plan (2018) 85,000 - 85,000
Total department 42 85,000 - - - - - 85,000 - - -
Page 1 of 2

23




MACKENZIE COUNTY

Non-TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

APPENDIX Il

External Funding Internal Funding
Project Description 08 Sl oy Municipal jotrnft:(:d Notes
d P BUDGET Cost FGTF Grant MSI Grant | Other Grant| Sources p p. RS-type Debenture
levy (previous
(non-grant)
vears)
(43) - Solid Waste Disposal
FV - Transfer Station Composting Program (CF 2015) 5,000 5,000 GOR
LC - Transfer Station Composting Program (CF 2015) 5,000 5,000 GOR
LC - Waste Packer Plan (CF 2015) 5,000 5,000 GOR
Waste Bins 40 & 6 yd (2018) 20,000 8,000 12,000 Dispose of 20 waste bins
Total department 43 [ 35,000 - - - - 8,000 12,000 15,000 - -
(61) - Planning & Development Department
Infrastructure Master Plans (CF 2016) 12,559 12,559 GOR
Rural Addressing Signs (CF 2015) - - GOR Motion 18-05-355
Natural Disaster Mitigation Program (CF 2017) 105,000 90,000 15,000 GCR
Municipal Census (2018) 120,000 25,000 95,000 REDI
MuniSight Software - GIS (2018) 98,000 98,000
Seven (7) Intermunicipal Development Plan and Ab "
Intermunicpal Collaborative Framework (2018) 350,000 200,000 150,000 erta parnership grant
Total department 61 685,559 - - - 315,000 - 343,000 27,559 - -
(63) - Agricultural Services Department
\Dell Tough Book and software (2018) 20,500 20,500
‘Paint MARA Building (2018) 10,000 5,000 5,000 GOR $5,000 Originally in 2017 Operating
Total department 63 30,500 - - - - - 25,500 5,000 -
(71) - Recreation
ZA - Hall Electrical Upgrades (CF 2015/2016) 7,414 7,414 RB-ZA
FV - Facility Security Camera System (2018) 3,000 3,000
LC - 2 Sets of Mini Nets & Portable Boards (2018) 8,500 8,500
LC - 2 Heaters for Bleachers (2018) 6,500 6,500
LC - Ice Rink Foam Dividers (CF 2017) 116 116 RR-LC
LC - Sidewalk to Tennis Courts (CF 2017) 88 88 GTOO
Total department 71 25,619 - - - - - 18,000 7,618 - -
(72) - Parks
FV- Bridge Campsite - Clear Trees (CF 2016) 5,000 5,000 GOR
Fire Pits & Picnic Tables (CF 2017) 1,250 1,250 GOR
Wadlin Lake - Blocking for Dock (CF 2014) 2,500 2,500 GOR
Total department 72 | 8,750 | - - -] -] - - 8,750 | - -
| TOTAL 2018 Non-TCA Projects | 2,477,076 | - - - | 905,960 | 40,500 | 845,200 | 685,414 | - -
The impact to the individual Reserve is as follows:
General Operating Reserve $662,796
General Capital Reserve $15,000
Recreation Board Zama Reserve $7,414
Recreation Reserve La Crete $116
Grants to Other Organizations Reserve $88
Total $685,414
Page 2 of 2

24




MACKENZIE COUNTY
TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

APPENDIX Il

External Funding Internal Funding
Project Description A County Cost Other Restricted Notes
BUDGET Municipal Surplus
FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant [Sources (non- levy RS-type (previous Debenture
grany years)

(12) - Administration Department
1 Signs with Flags for FV Office (CF 2015) 14,859 GCR 14,859
2 Payroll Software (CF 2016) 4,163 GCR 4,163
3 LC - Floor Washer (CF 2017) 8,360 GCR 8,360
4 ZC - Admin Building Tree Planting (CF 2017) 13,884 GCR 13,884
5 Land Purchase (South of High Level) (CF 2015) 13,000 GCR 13,000
6 Information Technology Network Equipment (2018) 30,000 - 30,000
7 FV Office HYAC Photocopy Room/Meeting Room 1/Council 30,000 30,000 GOR 30,000

Chambers (2018)
8 FV Cargo Trailer (2018) 12,000 12,000 V&E 12,000

Total department 12 126,266 42,000 - 30,000 - - - 96,266 -

(23) - Fire Department
9 FV - Training Facility (CF 2017) 11,350 10,000 GCR 1,350 Other Sources - Fort Vermilion Fire Dept 50/50
10 LC - Deck Gun (Tompkins) (2018) 15,000 . 15,000
11 LC - Pison Intake Valve and Booster Reel (Tompkins) (2018) 18,500 8,600 V&E 9,900 Motion 18-03-243
12 LC - Wildland Skid (2018) 5,200 - 5,200
13 LC - Install Generator Hook up (2018) 8,000 8,000 GOR 8,000
14 LC - Fire Truck (2018) 500,000 - V&E 500,000

Total department 23 558,050 8,000 - 28,800 - 10,000 - 519,250 -
Page 10of 4

25




MACKENZIE COUNTY
TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

APPENDIX Il

External Funding Internal Funding
Project Description 2018 County Cost Other - Restricted Notes
BUDGET Municipal Surplus
FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant [Sources (non- RS-type . Debenture
grant) levy (previous
vears)
(32) - Transportation Department
15 New Road Infrastructure (CF) 255,478 RD 255,478
16 LC - Engineering & Design for 113 Street and 109 Ave (CF 2015) 41,217 RD 41,217
17 Gravel Reserve (CF 2014) 92,357 RD 92,357
18 FV - 46 Ave Road Pave (CF 2017) 6,275 GCR 6,275
19 LC - Teachers Loop Asphalt & Sidewalk (CF 2017) 404,903 254,475 RD/GCR 150,428 18-02-081 (80k RD, 70,428 GCR)
20 LC - Bridges to New Lands - Range Rd180 (CF 2017) 1,563,270 655,750 517,520 390,000 | other Grant strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program
21 LC - Bridges to New Lands - Township Rd1020 (CF 2017) 950,636 533,500 417,136 | Other Grant Strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program
22 Street Sweeper (2018) 335,000 - 310,000 25,000 Other Sources - Equipment Disposal Unit # 3206
23 AWD Grader x3 (2018) 1,488,261 377,298 532,863 578,100 V&E 377,298 Unit # 2137, # 2138, # 2139
24 FV - Tractor w/ Snowblower Attachment (2018) 256,500 - 195,500 61,000 Unit # 2415
25 FV - Skidsteer (2018) 51,000 - 26,000 25,000 Unit # 2326
26 LC - Tilt Trailer (2018) 11,000 11,000 V&E 11,000
27 LC - Skidsteer (2018) 51,000 - 26,000 25,000 Unit # 2327
28 LC - Pick up Truck (2018) 42,000 - 27,000 15,000 Unit # 1045
29 ZA - Back Hoe (2018) 139,000 - 139,000
30 ZA - Dump Trailer (2018) 12,000 12,000 V&E 12,000
31 FV - Pressure Washer (2018) 17,000 16,500 500 GCR 16,500
32 LC - Heated Oil Unit Setup/Storage (2018) 40,000 40,000 GCR 40,000
33 FV - Overlay 45 Ave (2018) 80,000 - 80,000
34 FV - Overlay 47 Street (Hospital Hill) (2018) 40,000 - 40,000
35 FV - Rebuild Eagles Nest Road (2 miles) (2018) 800,000 183,874 616,126 RR 183,874
36 FV - Crosswalk Lights (2018) 10,550 - 10,550
37 FV - Fix Hill on Range Raod 134 (2018) 13,000 - 13,000
38 LC - Cross Walk Lights x2 (2018) 20,700 - 20,700
39 LC - Chipseal North & South Access (2018) 275,000 - 275,000
40 LC - Rebuild Golf Course Rd (1/2 mile) (2018) 205,000 205,000 RR 205,000
41 LC - Rebuild Airport Road (2 miles) (2018) 800,000 800,000 GCR 800,000
LC - Rebuild Blue Hills Road (2 miles) (2018)
42 LC - Rebuild Range Road 180 N (2 miles) (2018) 800,000 800,000 ger CEYeT
43 LC - Buffalo Head Tower Flood Mitigation (2018) 50,000 50,000 GOR 50,000
44 LC - Oil Blumenort Road West (2018) 185,000 - 185,000
45 LC - Overlay River Road (2018) 880,000 880,000 GCR 880,000
46 FV - Shop Parking & Entrance Improvements (2018) 12,000 12,000 GCR 12,000
47 LC - Various Overlays Hamlet of La Crete (2018) 250,000 250,000 RR 250,000
48 LC - Thermoplastc Lines Hamlet of La Crete (2018) 48,000 48,000 RR 48,000
49 LC- 1/2 mile Road South of Blue Hill Bridge (2018) 300,000 - RR 300,000 Motion 18-02-082
Total department 32| 10,526,147 | 3,685,672 | 616,126 | 2,790,838 | 1,051,020 | 729,600 | - - | aps1427] 807,136 |
(33) - Airport
50 FV - Parking Lot Drainage Improvements (CF 2017) [ 20,000] [ [ [ [ IC-AIR GCR [ 20,000 | [
Total department 33 | 20,000 | - - - -] - - - 20,000 | -
(41) - Water Treatment & Distribution Department
51 LC - Well Number 4 (CF 2016) 900,095 RWTR/GCR 900,095 900,000 GCR 95 RWIR
52 ZA - Water Treatment Plant Upgrading (CF 2017) 834,615 662,128 RWITR 172,487
53 FV - Frozen Water Services Repairs (River Road) (CF 2015) 138,268 RWITR 138,268
54 LC - Waterline Bluehills (CF 2015) 833,250 RWITR 833,250
55 LC - Rural Potable Water Infrastructure (CF 2015) 20,000 GCR 20,000
56 FV - Storage Work (CF 2017) 3,192 GCR 3,192
. $20,000 from 2017 Non TCA Project - HL Rural
57 FV - Rural Water Supply North of the Peace River (2018) 420,000 - GOR 420,000 Comprehensive Water Stud $4100 000
Total department 41 3,149,420 - - - 662,128 - - - 2,487,292 -
Page 2 of 4

26



MACKENZIE COUNTY
TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

APPENDIX Il

External Funding Internal Funding
Project Description 2018 County Cost Other - Restricted Notes
BUDGET Municipal Surplus
FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant [Sources (non- RS-type . Debenture
levy (previous
grant)
vears)
(42) - Sewer Disposal Department
58 ZA - Lift Station Upgrade (CF 2013-2017) 1,819,068 1,034,250 WIR/DR 784,818 585,606 DR, 199,212 WIR
59 FV - Main Lift Station Grinder (CF 2017) 10,244 10,244
60 LC - Sanitary Sewer Expansion (CF 2016) 115,130 48,000 WTR SWR/GCR 115,130 $67,130 WIR, $48,000 GCR
61 LC - Main Lift Station Meter (2018) 50,000 - 50,000
Total department 42 1,994,442 48,000 - 50,000 1,044,494 - - - 899,948 -
(43) - Waste
62 [Build Up Berm - Blumenort WTS (CF 2017) [ 9,000] [ [ [ 1C-WST 9,000 | [
Total department 43 | 9,000 | -] - -] -] - - - 9,000 | -
(61) - Planning & Development
63 [FV - streetscape (CF 2017) [ 59,639 | | | | IC-DV/GCR 59,639 | [ 34,639 IC Development, 25,000 GCR
64 [LC - streetscape (CF 2017) | 34,967 | | | | IC-DV/GCR 34,967 | | 9,967 IC Development, 25,000 GCR
Total department 61 | 94,606 | -] - -] -] -] - - 94,606 | -]
(63) - Agriculture
65 HL - Rurf?\l IDrainadg/e - Phase“II & Phase lIl (CF 2014/%0;5) G 77,808 DR 77,808
LC - Buffalo Head/Steep Hill Water Management (Phase I) (CF
66 2014/2015) 474,794 DR 474,794
Total department 63 552,602 - - - - - - - 552,602 -
(71) - Recreation
67 FV - Ball Diamonds (CF 2015) 2,250 RB-FV 2,250
68 FV - Rodeo Grounds (CF 2016) 17,933 RB-FV 17,933
69 FV - Skate Shack (CF 2015) 30,000 RB-FV 30,000
70 ZA - Com. Hall: Property Full Landscaping (CF 2015) 2,302 RB-ZA 2,302
71 FV - Ice Plant Repair (CF 2017) 51,846 RF-FV 51,846
72 FV - Hall Reno (Kitchen) (CF 2017) 20,000 RB-FV 20,000
73 FV - Bathroom Reno (CF 2017) 463 RB-FV 463
74 LC - Fire Alarm (CF 2017) 6,000 RB-LC 6,000
75 LC - Natural Gas, Hot Water Tank (big), 4 New Baseboards (CF 2017) 5,105 RB-LC 5,105
76 LC - One Set of Lights for Outdoor Rink (CF 2017) 1,028 GOO 1,028
7 LC - 2" Water Line to the Ball Diamonds (CF 2017) 750 GOO 750
78 LC - 3 Windows Upstairs Overlooking the Ice (CF 2017) 4,000 GOO 4,000
79 LC - Dressing Room Expansion including Gym/Weight Room (CF 2017) 190,243 GCR 190,243
80 ZA - Water Repair in Furnace Room (CF 2017) 10,000 GOO 10,000
81 ZA - Re-shingling Hall (CF 2017) 35,000 GOO 35,000
82 ZA - Energy Efficiency Upgrade (CF 2017) 30,000 GOO 30,000
83 FV - Boiler Condenser Heater (CF 2017) 3,250 RB-FV 3,250
84 La Crete Arena Condenser Motor Purchase (CF 2017) 4,972 GOO 4,972
85 FV - Arena Ice Surface Lighting Upgrade (2018) 20,000 20,000 GOR 20,000
86 FV - Boiler Room Upgrades (2018) 45,000 45,000 GOR 45,000
87 FV - Facility Door Upgrades (2018) 30,000 30,000 GOR 30,000
88 LC - Blue Hills Skate Shack Repairs (2018) 20,000 20,000 GOR 20,000
89 LC - Renovate Old Dressing Rooms (2018) 30,000 15,000 15,000 GOR 15,000
90 LC - Floor Scrubber (2018) 7,000 7,000 GOR 7,000
91 LC - Splash Park Electrical & Plumbing (2018) 18,000 18,000 GOR 18,000
92 LC - Parking Lot Slurry & Lines (2018) 17,500 - 17,500
Total department 71 602,642 155,000 - 17,500 - 15,000 - - 570,142 -
Page 3of 4

27




MACKENZIE COUNTY
TCA Projects 2018 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

APPENDIX Il

External Funding Internal Funding
Project Description 2018 County Cost Other Restricted Notes
BUDGET Municipal Surplus
FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant [Sources (non- levy RS-type (previous Debenture
grany vears)
(72) - Parks & Playgrounds Department
93 Bridge Campground - Survey & Improvements (CF 2014) 43,627 RP/GCR 43,627 18,627 Recreation & Parks, 25,000 GCR
94 FV - D.A. Thomas Park - Retaining Wall (CF 2016) 15,445 RP/GCR 15,445 5,445 Recreation & Parks, 10,000 GCR
95 Wadlin Lake - Grounds Improvements (CF 2016-2017) 11,851 RP 11,851
96 Improvements to Provincial Park - Bidge Campground (CF 2017) 43,998 29,964 IC-REC 14,034
97 Hutch Lake Cabins - Playground (CF 2017) 4,640 MR 4,640
98 Hutch Lake Campground Improvements (CF 2017) 75,186 IC-REC/MR 75,186 12,186 IC- Recreation & Parks, 63,000 Municpal Reserve
99 Hutch Lake Dock Blocks (CF 2017) 10,000 IC-REC 10,000
100 LC - Slide & Swings Big Back Yard (CF 2017) 2,987 MR 2,987
101 Machesis Lake - Dock Blocks (CF 2017) 10,025 RP 10,025
102 FV - Processor / Splitter (2018) 33,200 33,200 V&E 33,200
103 LC - Zero Turn Mower (2018) 15,200 - 15,200 Donate Unit #3010 to La Crete Recreation Board
104 3/4 ton pickup (2018) 45,000 - 43,500 1,500 Unit #1646
105 FV - Parks Storage Shed (2018) 27,500 - 27,500
106 FV - Hutch Lake Cabin Expansion (2018) 114,000 114,000 GOR 114,000
. $15,000 transfer from 2017 Non TCA Project - Wadlin
107 FV - Wadlin Lake Land Purchase (2018) 17,725 - GOR/GCR 17,725 Lake Land Purchase: Motion 18-04-316
Total department 72 470,384 147,200 - 86,200 29,964 1,500 - 352,720 -
I TOTAL 2018 Capital Projects 18,103,559 4,085,872 616,126 3,003,338 2,787,606 756,100 - 10,133,253 807,136
I 2018 Capital Projects - Conditional on Grant Funding
108 ZA - Sewage Forcemain (2018) 1,085,000 - 542,500 542,500 - | contingent on grant funding
109 | FV - Rebuild Rocky Lane Road (2018) 1,000,000 5,000 500,000 495,000 RR 5,000 contingent on grant funding
110 | ZC - Access Pave (PH V) (CF 2014) 6,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 | contingent on grant funding
8,085,000 5,000 - 542,500 4,042,500 495,000 - 5,000 3,000,000
I TOTAL 2018 Capital Projects 26,188,559 4,090,872 616,126 | 3,545,838 | 6,830,106 1,251,100 - 10,138,253 3,807,136

The draws from reserves are comprised of the $4,090,872 not
allocated in the 2018 Approved Budget and the $6,047,381 that reflect
Carry Forwards and prior Council approvals by Motion for a total of
253

The impact to the individual Reserve is as follows:

General Operating Reserve

General Capital Reserve

Vehicle & Equipment Reserve

Road Reserve

Water & Sewer Reserve

Rural Water Reserve

Incomplete Capital - Airport

Surface Water Management Reserve
Incomplete Capital - Waste
Recreation Board - Fort Vermilion
Incomplete Capital - Development
Recreation Board - Zama

Recreation Board - La Crete

Grants to Other Organizations

RF - Fort Vermilion

Recreation & Parks

Incomplete Capital - Recreation & Parks
Municipal Reserve

Total

$792,000
$3,929,979
$955,398
$1,460,926
$266,342
$1,144,100
$20,000
$1,138,208
$9,000
$73,896
$44,606
$2,302
$11,105
$85,750
$51,846
$45,948
$36,220
$70,627

$10,138,253

Page 4 of 4

28




Agenda ltem # 3. b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: September 24, 2018
Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Director of Legislative & Support Services
Title: Minutes of the September 19, 2018 Special Council Meeting

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Minutes of the September 19, 2018, Special Council Meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

Approved Council Meeting minutes are posted on the County website.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

4| Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the minutes of the September 19, 2018 Special Council Meeting be adopted as
presented.

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by: CG CAO:

29



30



PRESENT:

REGRETS:

ADMINISTRATION:

ALSO PRESENT:

MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, September 19, 2018

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

Peter F. Braun
Lisa Wardley

Jacquie Bateman
Cameron Cardinal

David Driedger
Eric Jorgensen
Josh Knelsen
Ernest Peters

Anthony Peters
Walter Sarapuk

Len Racher
Byron Peters
David Fehr
Fred Wiebe
Bill McKennan
Grant Smith
Don Roberts
Caitlin Smith

Reeve

Deputy Reeve

Councillor

Councillor (left the meeting at 3:07 p.m.)
Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor (left the meeting at 12:06 p.m.)

Councillor
Councillor

Chief Administrative Officer

Deputy CAO

Director of Operations

Director of Utilities

Director of Finance

Agricultural Fieldman

Zama Site Manager

Planning Supervisor/Recording Secretary

Ron Edgecombe, Buttertown Clean up Volunteer
Eugene Lizotte, Buttertown Resident

Minutes of the Special Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on September 19, 2018

in the Fort Vermilion Council Chambers.

CALL TO ORDER:

AGENDA:

MOTION 18-09-681

1.a) Call to Order

Reeve Braun called the meeting to order at 10:16 a.m.

2.a) Adoption of Agenda

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the agenda be approved with the following addition:

31



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, September 19, 2018

ADOPTION OF

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 18-09-682

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

GENERAL REPORTS:

TENDERS:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Page 2 of 4

4.a) Ron Edgecombe, Buttertown Clean up Volunteer
CARRIED

3.a) None

4.a) Ron Edgecombe, Buttertown Clean up Volunteer
Ron Edgecombe made a presentation addressing his concerns
regarding the timeline involved in order for the residents to
receive disaster relief funding. He is worried that the displaced
residents won’t be in their homes by winter.

Council suggests that the community rally,together and collect
donations to try and get the residentstinte their homes as soon
as possible.

Councillor Cardinal is interestediin heading this initiative by
seeking donations thraugh bBusiness owners and public.

Ron will come up.withea comprehensive list of supplies needed
and an estimated, budget to complete the homes.

The delegates left the meeting at 10:44 a.m.
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

Lhatthe County start a financial program to accept public
dohations on behalf of the Buttertown residents.

CARRIED

Reeve Braun recessed the meeting at 11:04 a.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 11:16 a.m.

5.a) None

6.a) None

7.a) None

8.a) None

32



MACKENZIE COUNTY

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, September 19, 2018

ADMINISTRATION:

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

FINANCE:

OPERATIONS:

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

UTILITIES:

INFORMATION:

IN-CAMERA
SESSION:

MOTION 18-09-683

MOTION 18-09-684

NOTICE OF MOTION:

NEXT MEETING

Page 3 of 4

9.a) None

10. a) None

11. a) None

12. a) None

13. a) None

14. a) None

15. a) None
16. a) None

17. In-Camera Session

MOVED by Countillor€ardinal

That Couneil move in-camera at 11:26 a.m. to discuss the
following:

17%a) mter-municipal Agreements (FOIP, Div.2, Part 1, s. 21)
CARRIED

All Councillors and administration were present during the in-
camera discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6))

Councillor E. Peters left the meeting at 12:06 p.m.
Councillor Cardinal left the meeting at 3:07 p.m.
MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That Council move out of camera at 3:36 p.m.
CARRIED

18. a) None
19. a) Next Meeting Dates

33



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, September 19, 2018

DATE:

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 18-09-685

Page 4 of 4

Regular Council Meeting
September 24, 2018

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Regular Council Meeting
October 9, 2018
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
20. a) Adjournment
MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the Special Council meeting be adjourned at 3:36 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for apprevaken September 24, 2018.

Peter F. Braun
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

34



Agenda ltem # 4. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: September 24, 2018
Presented By: Fred Wiebe, Director of Utilities
Title: DELEGATION
) Helix Engineering — La Crete Future Utility Servicing Plan

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The La Crete future utility servicing plan consists of a sanitary sewer design for the
south side of the Hamlet of La Crete and a storm water management plan for the north
side of La Crete. These plans will enable Mackenzie County to have offsite levy bylaws
in place as interest in development continues.

The Infrastructure Master Plan provides a high level overview of the infrastructure that is
needed and is a good guiding document, but it provides no specific sighting and design
details. These details are needed in order to allow developers to complete their
conceptual design and costing estimates, which typically occur a year or two before any
actual development occurs.

Helix Engineering has developed a design and calculated estimated costs and
scenarios as to how the costs can be recovered through off-site levies, grant funding,
and/or municipal contributions. The presentation provides an overview of the project
area, high end preliminary design, and cost breakdowns.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

The two draft design plans are attached for review prior to our second open house
which is scheduled for October 1, 2018.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The costs are presented in the presentation.

Author: F. Wiebe Reviewed by: CAO: L.Racher

35



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

The sustainability plan has several references to the matter at hand, some specifically
and some more ambiguously:

Goal E26: That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for a
continually growing population.

Goal C1: That the capacity of infrastructure in County hamlets and rural communities
keeps pace with their growth and is planned in a way that ensures their sustainability.

Goal C5: That the County continues to provide high quality utility services (water
distribution and treatment as well as waste water collection and treatment) and ensures
that they:

Are available in each hamlet,

Meet quality standards consistent with current national standards and demand,
Are stable and reliable,

Are each financially self-sustaining at both operational and capital levels.

COMMUNICATION:

A public open house meeting was held on July 4" where all affected developers were
contacted and good attendance was recorded. Another open house is scheduled for
October 1, 2018 to communicate final design and cost sharing breakdown, landowners
have already been notified.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

For discussion.

Author: F.Wiebe Reviewed by: CAO: L.Racher

36



Agenda ltem # 5. b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: September 24, 2018
Presented By: Byron Peters, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Title: Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The minutes of the September 6, 2018 Municipal Planning Commission meeting are

attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION:

N/A

Author: B. Peters Reviewed by:

37

CAO:




RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Maijority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of September 6, 2018 be
received for information.

Author: B. Peters Reviewed by: CAO:

38



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

MACKENZIE COUNTY
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Mackenzie County Office
La Crete, AB

Thursday, September 6, 2018 @ 2:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Erick Carter Chair, MPC Member

Jack Eccles Vice Chair, MPC Member

Beth Kappelar MPC Member

David Driedger Councillor, MPC Member (via teleconference)

Jacquie Bateman Councillor, MPC Member (via teleconference)
ADMINISTRATION: Byron Peters Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Caitlin Smith Planner

Kristin Darling Planner

Lynda Washkevich Development Officer

Laura Braun Administrative Assistant/Recording Secretary
MOTION 1. CALL TO ORDER

MPC-18-09-129

MPC-18-09-130

Erick Carter called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That the agenda be adopted as presented.
CARRIED

3. MINUTES

a) Adoption of Minutes

MOVED by Jack Eccles

That the minutes of August 23, 2018 Municipal Planning
Commission meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes

39



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 2 of 9

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

MPC-18-09-131

None.

4, TERMS OF REFERENCE

For information.

5. DEVELOPMENT

a) 178-DP-18 Curtis Wiens
Garage — Detached with a 50% Setback Variance
Rural Country Residential “RCR1”
Plan 942 4004, Lot 01

MOVED by Jack Eccles

That Development Permit 178-DP-18 on Lot 01, , Plan 942 4004 in the
name of Curtis Wiens be APPROVED with the following conditions:

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall render
this permit Null and Void

1. A 50% Setback Variance for the Garage — Detached is hereby
granted. The Garage — Detached shall be 12.5 feet (3.81meters)
from the West Property Line.

Minimum building setbacks for the remainder yards are:

a) 41.2 meters (135 feet) front (North) yard;

b) 7.6 meters (25 feet) side (East) yard;

c) 15.2 meters (50 feet) rear (South) yard; from the
property lines.

2. AN APPROVED ROADSIDE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS
REQUIRED FROM ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION. ALL
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS BY ALBERTA
TRANSPORTATION SHALL BE MET TO THEIR SPECIFICATIONS
AND STANDARDS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF
DEVELOPMENT. (CONTACT ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION AT 1-
780-624-6280).

3. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of buildings

and other structures shall be to accepted standards and shall
compliment the natural features and character of the site and the
aesthetics of the neighbouring residences to the satisfaction of the
Development Authority.

4. The Garage — Detached will have a maximum vehicle entrance door
height of 4.6 m (15 feet) and shall not exceed one story in height.

40



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 3 of 9

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

MPC-18-09-132

10.

The Garage — Detached is approved for residential purposes
only and no commercial activity is permitted in this building. If
the developer/landowner/occupant or other person or persons
intend to use the Garage - Detached for commercial or industrial
uses, a hew development permit is required prior to the
commencement of the commercial or industrial use.

All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private Sewage
Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

This permit approval is subject to the access to the property being
constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation of a new
access or changing location of existing access, complete a Request
for Access form by contacting the Operational Services Department
for Mackenzie County at 780-928-3983. Access to be constructed at
the developers’ expense.

No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way. It is
the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate the
utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to
commencement of any construction and to ensure that no
construction or development is completed on any utility right-of-way.

The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage without
adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County
Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED

b) 179-DP-18 Westridge Apartments
8 — Unit Dwelling — Apartment (Phase 1) with a 25% Setback
Variance (10 feet) from front property line facing 108A Street
Hamlet Residential 2 “HR2”

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That Development Permit 179-DP-18 on Plan 022 6610, Block 25, Lot 24
in the name of Westridge Apartments be APPROVED with the following
conditions:

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall render

1.

this permit Null and Void
A 25% Setback Variance for the Dwelling — Apartment is hereby

granted. The Dwelling — Apartment shall be 11.1 feet (3.38 meters)
from the front property line facing 108A Street.

41



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 4 of 9
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

Minimum building setbacks from the remainder are:

a) 1.5 meters (5 feet) interior side (North and South)
yards; and

b) 1.5 meters (5 feet) rear (East) yard; from the property
lines, or setbacks required by Safety Codes,
whichever is greater. It is the responsibility of the
developer to find out the Safety Codes setbacks.

2. The Dwelling — Apartment shall meet all Alberta Safety Code
requirements for Dwelling — Apartment buildings and any other
requirements specified by Superior Safety Codes. Failure to do so
shall render this permit Null and Void.

3. The Developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with
Mackenzie County.

4. The developer must provide design drawings prior to
construction.The architecture, construction materials and appearance
of the Dwelling — Apartment shall be to accepted standards and shall
compliment the natural features and character of the site to the
satisfaction of the Development Authority.

5. The Dwelling — Apartment is to be connected to the municipal
water and sewer system which needs to be upgraded and the
cost of connection fees will be borne by the owner. Please call
the utilities department at 780-928-3983 for more information.
Also the owner is responsible to ensure that all other utilities are
made available to the tenants, which would include electricity,
phone and natural gas.

6. The Municipality has assigned the following address to the
noted building 9905 — 108A Street. You are required to display
the address (9905) to be clearly legible from the street and be on
a contrasting background. The minimum size of the characters
shall be four inches in height.

Each unit must be numbered individually from 1-8 which will
be assigned by the municipality.

7. Provide adequate off street parking as follows: 1.5 stalls per 2
bedroom unit, 1 stall per 3 dwelling units for visitors. This would
be a total of 14 parking stalls for the 8 units. “One parking
space, including the driveway area, shall occupy 300 square
feet.”

8. Driveways within 108A Street shall be finished with concrete at
the developer’s expense.

9. The siting and development of the Dwelling — Apartment shall be in
compliance with the regulations of the Land Use Zone intended to be

42



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 5 of 9

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, September 6, 2018

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

applied to the site to accommodate future residential development;
provided that the development officer may attach additional
conditions to minimize adverse impacts on adjacent development,
including the construction of roadways or temporary turnarounds, in
accordance with Mackenzie County’s Design Standards.

The colours and materials employed for the exterior finishes,
whether permanent or temporary, shall be compatible with those
commonly found in Residential Zones. The fagade styling and
materials must be submitted to the Mackenzie County Planning
and Development department to be approved by the
Development Authority before construction commences.

Any exterior lighting shall be designed and located such that no light
is directed at adjoining properties and such that the effectiveness of
any traffic control devices is not impaired.

All DEVELOPMENT shall provide:

a. Lighting between DWELLING UNITS;

b. Orientation of buildings and general site appearance;

c. Safe pedestrian access to and from the public sidewalk
fronting the building; and

d. Parking areas adjacent to streets must be paved.

No construction or development is allowed on a right-of-way. It is the
responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate the
utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to
commencement of any construction and to ensure that no
construction or development is completed on any utility right-of-way.

The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage without
adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County
Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED

6.

SUBDIVISIONS

a) 27-SUB-18 David Driedger
10.0 Acre Subdivision
SE 29-107-13-W5M

MPC-18-09-133 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

43



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 6 of 9
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

That Subdivision Application 22-SUB-18 in the name of David Driedger on
SE 29-107-13-W5M be APPROVED with the following conditions:

1. This approval is for a TYPE B subdivision, 10 acres (4.04 Hectares) in
size.

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not
limited to:

a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the
developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

b) Provision of a road and access to both the subdivision and the
balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County
standards at the developer’s expense.

c) The landowner shall enter into an easement agreement for a
shared access with the adjacent landowner.

d) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

e) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss
the requirements for your subdivision.

f) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

g) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in lieu of
land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the subject land
and on the current market value. The current market value for
this property is $5,000 per acre. Municipal reserve is charged
at 10%, which is $500 per subdivided acre. 10 acres times
$500 equals $5,000.

h) The Developer has the option to provide a market value
appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a specified
date occurring within the 35-day period following the date
on which the application for subdivision approval is
made in accordance to the Municipal Government Act
Section 667(1)(a).

i) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric,
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

44



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 7 of 9

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

MPC-18-09-134

j) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached.

k) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting
from the water tables and any other water problems as a
result of any low land levels of the proposed development.
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to
avoid water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or
flooding of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings.

CARRIED

b) 27-SUB-18 Frank & Dolores Bergen
46.90 Acre Subdivision
SW 20-105-14-W5M

MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That Subdivision Application 27-SUB-18 in the name of Frank and
Dolores Bergen on SW 20-105-14-W5M be APPROVED with the
following conditions:

1. This approval is for a TYPE A subdivision, 46.90 acres (18.98
Hectares) in size.

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not
limited to:

a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the
developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

b) Provision of a road and access to both the subdivision and the
balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County
standards at the developer’s expense.

c) The landowner shall enter into an easement agreement for a
shared access with the adjacent landowner.

d) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

I.  The existing pumpout sewer discharge line shall be

45



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 8 of 9
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

relocated, as shown on the Tentative Plan drafted by
Borderline Surveys JOB # 180004 to meet the current
Alberta Private Sewage Systems Standards of Practice
2015, or the installation of a new sewer system that
meets the setback regulation will be accepted. Proof of
either the relocation of the existing line is required or
an Approved Sewer permit for a new system. This
shall be completed prior to registration of the
subdivision at Alberta Land Titles.

e) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to discuss
the requirements for your subdivision.

f) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

g) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric,
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

h) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached.

i) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or resulting
from the water tables and any other water problems as a
result of any low land levels of the proposed development.
It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that
adequate drainage and other precautions are taken to
avoid water seepage into the dwellings/basement and/or
flooding of the basement, and/or any ancillary buildings.

CARRIED

7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

None.
8. IN CAMERA
None.

9. MEETING DATES

s Thursday, September 20, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion
% Thursday, October 11, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m. in La Crete

46



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 9 of 9
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 6, 2018

% Thursday, November 1, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion

10. ADJOURNMENT

MPC-18-09-135 MOVED by Jack Eccles

That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned at 2:40
p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes were adopted this 20™ day of September, 2018.

Erick Carter, Chair

47



48



Agenda ltem # 5. c)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: September 24, 2018
Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Director of Legislative & Support Services
Title: Subdivision & Development Appeal Board

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The Subdivision & Development Appeal Board met on September 6, 2018. A copy of
their decision is attached for your information.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Maijority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Subdivision & Development Appeal Board Decision for 02-SDAB-18 be
received for information.

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by: CAO:

49



P.O. Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue,
MACKENZIE COUNTY SDAB Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO
P: (7 27-3718 Toll Free: 1-877-927-0677
Subdivision & Development Appeal Board (780) 927-3718 To ree,:: (7880) 827-2266

www.mackenziecounty.com

APPEAL BOARD DECISION

Date of Appeal Hearing: September 6, 2018
Date of Issuance of SDAB September 7, 2018
Decision:

Appeal Application No.: 02-SDAB-18

Legal Description: 4717 River Road

Fort Vermilion, AB

Appellant Name & Address: Daniel and Trisha O’Neill
Box 341, Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Appeal: Development Permit 122-DP-18
Daniel and Trisha O’Neill
Retail — Convenience Store (Move On) & Enviro-Tank

APPEAL BOARD’S DECISION:

In the case of 02-SDAB-18, the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board
rules as follows:

To UPHOLD the appeal, amending the Municipal Planning Commission’s
decision for Development Permit 122-DP-18 approving a Retail —
Convenience Store (Move-On) and Enviro-Tank on Plan 2938RS, Block
01, Lot 01 (4717 River Road) in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion as follows:

e Maximum building setback is 75 feet from the backside of the
sidewalk with the first 25 feet being landscaping (as per attached
Schedule A).

e Landscaping shall be completed within 12 months from the date of
this Decision (as per attached Schedule A)

e Surface applications (concrete/asphalt) shall be completed within
24 months from the date of Decision (as per attached Schedule A)

e Landscaping and surface application requirements shall form part
of the Developer’'s Agreement with Mackenzie County as per Land
Use Bylaw — Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre Section 9.23.14.

50



Subdivision and Development Appeal Hearing Page 2
02-SDAB-18 (4717 River Road, Fort Vermilion)

REASONS FOR DECISION:

The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board considered all of the
information submitted and presented by the Development Authority, the
Appellant, and other parties present.

The Board hereby finds the following:

1.

That the appellants proposed site design emphasizes a pedestrian
friendly environment in terms of pedestrian and traffic flow safety. (Land
Use Bylaw — Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre Section 9.23.9)

That the appellants proposed site design provides for a visually pleasing
nature and vegetated buffer strip as sufficient screening. (Land Use
Bylaw — Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre Section 9.23.6)

That the appellants proposed site design provides for adequate tree
planting and landscaping. (Land Use Bylaw — Fort Vermilion Commercial
Centre Section 9.23.13)

That parking may be allowed in the front yard of the proposed
development as the property is a corner lot. (Land Use Bylaw — Fort
Vermilion Commercial Centre Section 9.23.16)

Although the official appeal period ended August 1, 2018, the Council of
Mackenzie County authorized an extension at their August 14, 2018
Council Meeting to August 21, 2018 (Council Motion 18-08-574).
Additionally the Board determined that the development permit
documents did not provide adequate clarity regarding timelines and
information relating to the appeal period and process.

51



Subdivision and Development Appeal Hearing Page 3
02-SDAB-18 (4717 River Road, Fort Vermilion)

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND STATUTORY PLANS:

Municipal Government Act RSA 2000 Chapter M-26

Municipal purposes
3 The purposes of a municipality are

(a) to provide good government,
(a.1) to foster the well-being of the environment,

(b) to provide services, facilities or other things that, in the
opinion of council, are necessary or desirable for all or a
part of the municipality,

(c) to develop and maintain safe and viable communities, and

(d) to work collaboratively with neighbouring municipalities
to plan, deliver and fund intermunicipal services.
RSA 2000 cM-2653:2016 ¢24 s6:2017 ¢13 s1(3)

Grounds for appeal
685(1) If a development authority

(a) fails or refuses to issue a development permit to a person,
(b) issues a development permit subject to conditions, or
(c) 1issues an order under section 645,

the person applying for the permit or affected by the order under
section 645 may appeal to the subdivision and development appeal
board.

(2) In addition to an applicant under subsection (1), any person
affected by an order, decision or development permit made or
issued by a development authority may appeal to the subdivision
and development appeal board.

(3) Despite subsections (1) and (2), no appeal lies in respect of the
issuance of a development permit for a permitted use unless the
provisions of the land use bylaw were relaxed, varied or
misinterpreted or the application for the development permit was
deemed to be refused under section 683.1(8).

52



Subdivision and Development Appeal Hearing Page 4
02-SDAB-18 (4717 River Road, Fort Vermilion)

Hearing and decision

687(1) At a hearing under section 686, the subdivision and
development appeal board must hear

(a) the appellant or any person acting on behalf of the

()

(c)

(d)

appellant,

the development authority from whose order, decision or
development permit the appeal is made, or a person acting
on behalf of the development authority,

any other person who was given notice of the hearing and
who wishes to be heard, or a person acting on behalf of
that person, and

any other person who claims to be affected by the order,
decision or permit and that the subdivision and
development appeal board agrees to hear, or a person
acting on behalf of that person.

(2) The subdivision and development appeal board must give its
decision in writing together with reasons for the decision within 15
days after concluding the hearing.

(3) In determining an appeal, the subdivision and development

appeal board
(a) mustact in accordance with any applicable ALSA
regional plan;

(a.1) must comply with any applicable land use policies;

(a.2) subject to section 638, must comply with any applicable
statutory plans;

(a.3) subject to clauses (a.4) and (d), must comply with any
land use bylaw in effect;

(a.4) must comply with the applicable requirements of the
regulations under the Gaming, Liquor and Cannabis Act
respecting the location of premises described in a
cannabis licence and distances between those premises
and other premises;

(b) must have regard to but is not bound by the subdivision

and development regulations;

53



Subdivision and Development Appeal Hearing Page 5
02-SDAB-18 (4717 River Road, Fort Vermilion)

(c)

(d)

may confirm, revoke or vary the order, decision or
development permit or any condition attached to any of
them or make or substitute an order, decision or permit of
its own;

may make an order or decision or issue or confirm the
issue of a development permit even though the proposed
development does not comply with the land use bylaw if,
in its opinion,

(1) the proposed development would not

(A) unduly interfere with the amenities of the
neighbourhood, or

(B) materially interfere with or affect the use,
enjoyment or value of neighbouring parcels of
land,

and

(1<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>